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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Background

Clearfield, Inc. (“Clearfield” or the “Company”jormerly APA Enterprises, Inc., is a Minnesota argiion which was founded in 1979. (
corporate headquarters is located at 5480 Nathame LWorth, Suite 120, Plymouth, MN 55442 and ourpooate website

www.clearfieldconnection.comThe information available on our website is nattf this Report. You can access, free of chawge filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, inoweéur annual report on Form 10-K, our quartedparts on Form 1@, current repor
on Form 8-K and any other amendments to those t®pbrough the “About Clearfield” link at our wetes or at the Commissios'website ¢

WWW.SeC.goVv.

Description of Business

Clearfield, Inc. manufactures, markets, and sefisead-toend fiber management and enclosure platform thasa@ates, distributes a
protects fiber as it moves from the inside planttte outside plant and all the way to the homejnass and cell site. The Company
successfully established itself as a vahadeled supplier to its target market of broadbamdice providers, including independent Ic
exchange carriers (telephone), multiple serviceraipes (cable), wireless service providers and wipal-owned utilities. Clearfield hi
expanded its product offerings and broadened &tocuer base during the last five years.

The Company has historically focused on the uneskor undeserved rural communities who receive their voiédew and data services fri
independent telephone companies. By aligning #sonse engineering and technical knowledge alongsidristomers, the Company has t
able to develop, customize and enhance produats diesign through production. Final build and adsgris completed at Clearfielsl’plant ir
Plymouth, Minnesota with manufacturing support frammetwork of domestic and global manufacturingtrgas. Clearfield specializes
producing these products on both a qutisl: and scheduled delivery basis. The Companyogsm hybrid sales model with some sales t
directly to the customer, some made through tieodistribution (channel) partners, and somessttieough original equipment suppliers \
private label its products.

Products

Clearview Cassette

The Clearview™ Cassette, a patented technologtheismain building block of the Compagyproduct platform. The value of the build
block approach is that Clearfield is the only compto provide the needs of every leg of the telemamications network with a single build
block architecture, reducing the customest of deployment by reducing labor costs assediaith training and reducing inventory carry
costs.

Clearview Classic and Clearview BlueClearview Classic and the recently announced rilea Blue, is a system of five parts that 1
together in the cassettsemain housing to support a wide range of appboati Parts can be added or removed as needed porstuipe
environment in which it is deployed. Clearview Blue¢hile fully compatible with Clearview Classic, @esigned for the utmost in modula
and scalability. It builds upon the Clearview Cladsy offering a smaller footprint and integratéack storage and splicing functionality.
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Clearview xPAK:Engineered to land small port count fiber termiorasi and optical components, the patented xPAK iigpsk flat an
unassembled. Following simple pictorial user indfians, a technician will assemble the device taciméehis field requirements at 1
installation site. Application environments includell backhaul, business class service delivery, node segtient fiber exhaust scenari
utility sub-stations, or fiber-to-thdesk deployment. All products which integrate aaBlew xPAK product in its design are markec
“Clearview Landed”.

Connectivity and Optical Components

The Clearview system consolidates, distributes@ntects fibers as they move from the inside plarihe home and business. These fiber
either connectorized directly for cabledable deployment or are connectorized onto opticaiponents that may amplify or divide the sig
they carry. We provide products that meet a custttable-to-cable deployment or optical compomeds.

Cable-to-Cable Deployment: Fiber Deépclass of fiber assemblies that guarantees padioce at .2dB insertion lossfully half that of the
industry standard. This metric extends the linlslbsdget effectively, extending the distance updickv fiber can be deployed. In additi
this 2dB improvement in optical budget reduces posassumption by 10%. The power savings, multipligdeven a small thousand hc
network, is a significant contribution to a comntyts “go-green” efforts.

Optical Components: Clearfield packages optical components for sigrmipling, splitting, termination, multiplexing, maltiplexing an
attenuation for a seamless integration withinilkerf management platform. This valadeded packaging allows the customer to source &
single supplier and reduces space requirementspiiddricts are built and tested to meet the sttichehistry standards ensuring custor
trouble-free performance in extreme outside planfrenments.

FieldSmart

Utilizing the Clearview Cassette and xPAK as buitgblocks, FieldSmart is a series of panels, cabirveall boxes and other enclosures
house the Clearview components to provide a cangistesign from the inside plant of the telco’sritcal office” or cable television’s “head-
end”, all the way through the outside plant to the acoetwork and through to the home. At each leg efrthtwork, the FieldSmart platfo
delivers a modular and scalable architecture tHatva the service provider to align their capit@jugoment expenditures alongside t
subscriber revenues.

Inside Plant: The FieldSmart Fiber Crossover Distribution Sgsté-xDS) and recently announced high density Field$ FxHD provide
complete fiber management modularity and scalgbditross the fiber network. Using the Clearviewlding block approach, each fit
management element provides modularity of physibal protection in the environment in which itgkced. The FxDS is a system of mod
and scalable building blocks that provide for aomttainment configurations with the use of Cleawiultiplied products. Easily configur
for initial placement and scaling from 12-portsatdull rack of 1728gorts, the FieldSmart FXxDS requires only four uidpocks to configul
initial deployment. The user then places what isdeel on the frame as subscriber take rates dictaie.FxHD is an integrated fit
management solution delivered via the ClearvieneBDassette. With instant access to all cassettapters, and jumpers, the frame is desi
as a front access frame, meaning all installatsodone from one side of the frame providing tha@ompto reclaim the aisle space requirec
frame solutions that require rear accesmé to use that space for other equipment or nrarads. The FxHD can be placed against a
cage in data center co-location environments, ok baback.




Outside Plant:The FieldSmart Fiber Scalability Center (FS@ )a modular and scalable outside plant cabinetahaws rollout of FTTI
services by communication service providers withauarge initial expense. Each outside plant calsteres feeder and distribution spli
splitters, connectors and slack cable neatly amdpeatly, utilizing fieldtested designs to maximize bend radius protectionnector acces
ease of cable routing and physical protection,efneiminimizing the risk of fiber damage. The FS@durct, with the Clearview cassette a
heart, has been designed to scale with the applicahvironment as demand requires and to redug&sdurn-up time for the end-user.

Access NetworlFieldSmart Fiber Delivery Point (FDP) is a seriégemclosure systems that incorporates the deligéfiper connectivity to th
neighborhood or business district in the most effgetive footprint possible. This family of wattount enclosures provides 12 to 144 por
connectivity for multidwelling unit fiber deployments, fiber demarcatiaggcurity systems (CCTV), telecommunications roogeds an
horizontal/intermediate cross-connects.

Access Networ: FieldSmart Small Count Delivery (SCD) is a sené®nclosure systems that are packaged to makinusmall count fibe
more cost-effective and efficient than previousigught possible. This family of wathount enclosures, panels and drop cable casesdpray
to 12 ports of connectivity when fiber managemaertritical but higheount density is required. The FieldSmart SCD iigated for applicatic
environments such as cell backhaul, business sksice delivery, node segmentation, fiber exhaust field pedestal, sub-station tusp-oi
fiber-to-the-desk deployment.

CraftSmart

CraftSmartis a full line of optical protection field enclogs; extending Clearfield presence in the fiber stgu The CraftSmart Fib
Protection Pedestals (FPP) and CraftSmart Fibaeétron Vaults (FPV) are integrated solutions, mited to house FieldSmart products a
last mile access point of the network in above-graidbelow-grade installations.

CraftSmart aims to optimize fiber protection andrage while ensuring industry standards. Utilizingthods of sealing and belayvade
protection, along with Clearfield innovation, Ci&ftart is a turn-key solution for the deploymenpassive optics from the central office/heac
end to the customer premise.

Cable Assemblies

Clearfield manufactures high quality fiber and ceppassemblies with an industry-standard or custespecified configuration. Industry-
standard assemblies built include but are not éichtb: single mode fiber, multimode fiber, mdibier, CATV node assembly, DS1 Telco, D
(734/735) coax, Category 5e and 6, SCSI, Token ,Ramgl V.35. In addition, Clearfiels’engineering services team works alongsidi
engineering design departments of our OEM custorttedesign and manufacture custom solutions foh etthebox as well as netwo
connectivity assemblies specific to that custompréduct line.




Markets

FTTP

Fiber to the Premise (also called Fiber to the Hoim@ means of delivering the highest possiblelled bandwidth directly to the user. 1
Companys sales and marketing efforts have principally bieensed on the U.S., and recently has added stlffisfocused on the Caribbe
and other Central and South American markets.

FTTB
Fiber to the Business is the rapid expansion ddrfibervices, principally by multiple service (cabl¢) operators to penetrate the busii
marketplace.

FTT-Cell site

Fiber to the Cell-Site is the trend in which wisdeservice providers are fecsusing their efforts from building towers for @mnage to enhancii
their coverage for bandwidth. Fiber is the medfichoice for their upgrade. Currently a very dmpaircentage of these cell sites are se
by fiber.

DAS

A distributedantenna system, or DAS, is a network of spatiadlyasated antenna nodes connected to a common sear@dransport mediu
that provides wireless service within a geograpinéa or structure. DAS antenna elevations are ghyet or below the clutter level and n«
installations are compact. Fiber may be used t&Hzad data from the antenna.

Build to Print
In addition to a proprietary product line desigriedthe broadband service provider marketplaceadid provides contract manufactur
services for original equipment manufacturers neagicopper and fiber cable assemblies built tar thgecification .

Competition

Competitors to the FieldSmart product lines includet are not limited to, Corning Cabling Systernms;,., OFS (Furukawa Electric No
America, Inc.), AFL Telecommunications (a subsidiaf Fujikura Ltd.), Fujikura Ltd., Alcatel, Inc., and TE Connectivity, Inc. (formefyca
Electronics). Competitors to the CraftSmart produw include Emerson Network Power, a subsidigrEmerson Electric Co., and Chal
Industries, Ltd. Nearly all of these firms are dabsally larger than Clearfield and as a resullyrba able to procure pricing for neces:
components and labor at much lower prices. Clddrfielieves that it has a competitive advantagé witstomers who can leverage the
savings the Clearview Cassette can provide andetlwdso require quick-turn, higberformance customized products, and that it
competitive disadvantage with customers who pridtypseek large volume commodity products.

Sources of Materials and Outsourced Labor

Numerous purchased materials, components, and kxeoused in the manufacturing of the Com|'s products. Most of these are rea
available from multiple suppliers. However, somanponents and outsourced labor are purchased fraimghe or a limited number
suppliers. The loss of access to some componeatatsourced labor could have an adverse effeduorability to deliver products or
timely basis and on our financial performance.




Major Customers

One customer comprised approximately 22% and 21fatalf sales for the fiscal years ended Septembe2@®L2 and 2011, respectively.
Patents and Trademarks

As of September 30, 2012, we had three patentdegtaand one pending in the United States and feudipg patent applications penc
inside and outside the United States. We havedsseloped and are using trademarks and logos tiwetnand promote our products, incluc
Clearfield®, Clearview®, FieldSmar® and CraftSmar®-

Backlog

Backlog reflects purchase order commitments for pruaducts received from customers that have yebedulfilled. Backlog orders a
generally shipped within three months. The Comphag a backlog of $2,647,000 and $3,814,000 as pfeSwer 30, 2012 and 20
respectively.

Seasonality

We are affected by the seasonal trends in the fridssve serve. We typically experience sequentialiver revenues in our first and sec
fiscal year quarters, primarily due to customer dmtdcycles, deployment schedules, some customegrggtical concentrations as well
standard vacation and holiday calendars. Reverasiesly reach a seasonal peak in our third andlidistal year quarters.

Product Development

Product development for Clearfietd’product line program has been conducted intgrtn&lle believe that the communication indu
environment is constantly evolving and our succkegsends on our ability to anticipate and resporttiése changes. Our focus is to analyz
environment and technology and work to develop petalthat simplify our customerkusiness by developing innovative high quality prete
utilizing modular design wherever possible. Redeartd development are reflected in Selling, Geraardl Administrative expenses and are
material to the overall expense total.

Employees

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had 15%ifo#-employees. We also have several pare- employees and independent contrac
None of our employees are covered by any colledtargaining agreement. We believe our employestiosis to be gooc

Segment Reporting
The Company operates in a single reportable segment
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The impact and the timing of the impact of the Anigan Recovery and Reinvestment Act on our businassuncertain.



The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARR#&iely known as the “Stimulus Bill,ivas enacted in February 2009. The AF
allocates $7.2 billion in grants, loans and loamargatees for broadband/wireless initiatives foarumserved and underserved geograg
across the country, with these initiatives adméristi by several federal agencies. This fundingaslable to a wide variety of organizatio
including our customers and prospective customerqurchase and implement network infrastructuré services to improve broadb:
coverage. As part of the criteria established ley feideral agencies administering these progranespitbjects to be funded through the
federal stimulus plan must be approved by the stastates in which the projects will be located.

All ARRA funding for these broadband/wireless iaitves was allocated to awarded applicants pridh¢ostart of this fiscal year. Howe\
the recognition of revenue associated with thesgepts has been slower than expected due in parégolatory delays associated v
documentation, long¢ead times associated with the delivery of fibetiopable and strategic review by the operatorbusiness case conditic
moving forward. We cannot be assured to what extenARRA will impact demand for our products, oesults of operations or the timing
purchases by customers. While originally intendedbé complete by the fall of 2012, the implementatileadlines for final installation a
implementation have been extended into 2013 and.201

National Broadband Pla’'s transitioning from the USF to the CAF program magause our customers to evaluate their businessraiens
and delay purchases.

In October of 2011, the FCC approved the NationaaBband Plan which called for the restructuringhef longstanding USF (Univers
Service Fund). A key element of this program ie tlansition out of the USF program, which awards aperating subsidy
telecommunications companies providing serviceighdsost serving areas, to the Connect America Fund={G¢hich would provide a capi
expenditure subsidy for the build-out of the couistbroadband network. In addition, other univéservice and intecarrier compensatic
reforms scheduled to begin in the coming years @&lithinate subsidies that carriers have traditiynadlied upon to support service in high-
cost, rural areas. We cannot be assured to whentethese program changes will impact demand dompooducts, our results of operation:
the timing of purchases by customers.

Long-lead times associated with the production and detivof fiber optic cable may impact the timing ofifghases by our customers a
demand for our products.

Broadband service providers deploying fiber netwake subject to the availability of fiber optidbtea Throughout fiscal years 2012 and 2!
the world’s supply of fiber optic cable for outside plant Borments was delivered to market at lead timeddiager than previously was
norm. Suppliers, such as Corning Cable Systems, GH&itomo and Prysmian have quoted our custonretspeospects average lead t
estimates of multiple months.

Some of our customers have delayed projects becdubese delays. We cannot be assured that leed thssociated with fiber optic cable
ease in the year ahead nor can we be assuredhéisat delays will not impact demand for our produmis results of operation or the timing
purchases by customers.

A significant percentage of our sales in the lastd fiscal years have been made to one customer, #nedloss of this customer wot
adversely affect us.

In fiscal years 2012 and 2011, one customer aceduiar 22% and 21% of our revenue, respectivefithdre is a loss of this customer ¢
significant decline in sales to this customerpitld have a material adverse effect on our re$uta operations.




Intense competition in our industry may result irripe reductions, lower gross profits and loss of rket share.

Competition in the telecommunications equipment aadvices industry is intense. Our competitors thaye or could develop or acqt
marketing, financial, development and personnalueses that exceed ours. Our ability to competeessfully will depend on whether we

continue to advance the technology of our prodactd develop new products, the acceptance of ouwtupts among our customers

prospective customers and our ability to anticipatstomer needs in product development, as weheagprice, quality and reliability of o
products, our delivery and service capabilities] aar control of operating expenses.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to comeiccessfully against our current or future coitgrst Increased competition fr
manufacturers of telecommunications equipment sisoburs may result in price reductions, lower gmséit margins, and increased discol
to customers and loss of market share and couldireeincreased spending by us on research and afgweht, sales and marketing
customer support.

Our results of operations could be adversely affsttby economic conditions and the effects of thesmditions on our customets
businesses.

Adverse changes in economic conditions, includirgrecent recession in the United States, havdtedsand may continue to result in loy
spending among our customers and contribute toedsed sales to our distributors and customerghéfurour business may be adver
affected by factors such as downturns in econoutigity in specific geographic areas or in the ¢elmmunications industry; social, political
labor conditions; or adverse changes in the auvéitlalnd cost of capital, interest rates, tax sater regulations. These factors are beyoni
control, but may result in further decreases imdpegg among customers and softening demand fopmducts. Declines in demand for
products will adversely affect our revenue. Furtledrallenging economic conditions also may imphe ability of our customers to pay
products and services they have purchased. Asuli,resr cash flow may be negatively impacted andallowance for doubtful accounts
write-offs of accounts receivable may increase.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlyrdm quarter to quarter, which may make budgetingrfexpenses difficult and me
negatively affect the market price of our commorsk.

Because many purchases by customers of our prodiiate to a specific customer project, the skemta demand for our products can flucti
significantly and our ability to forecast sales wately from quarter to quarter is limited. Thisdtuation can be further affected by the |
sales cycles necessary to obtain contracts to w@oplipment for these projects, the availabilitycapital to fund our customergtojects, an
the impact of the American Recovery and ReinvestrAehon customer buying patterns. These long sajekes may result in significant eff
expended with no resulting sales or sales thahatrenade in the anticipated quarter. Demand forpoojects will also depend upon the ex
to which our customers and prospective custométiatia these projects and the extent to which wesmlected to provide our equipmer
these projects, neither of which can be assureels@ Factors generally result in fluctuations, sémes significant, in our operating results.

Other factors that may affect our quarterly opegatesults including:
« the volume and timing of orders from and shipménitsur customers;

« work stoppages and other developments affectingpleeations of our customers;




« the timing of and our ability to obtain new custarentracts and the timing of revenue recognition;
« the timing of new product and service announcements

« the availability of products and services;

« market acceptance of new and enhanced versiong @iroducts and services;

« variations in the mix of products and services @lg s

« the utilization of our production capacity and eoydes; and

the availability and cost of key components of products.

Further, we budget our expenses based in part pecétions of future revenues. If revenue levels iparticular quarter are lower tt
expected, our operating results will be affectedeaskly.

Because of these factors, our quarterly operatisglts are difficult to predict and are likely tary in the future. If our operating results
below financial analysts’ or investors’ expectaipthe market price of our common stock may fallphly and significantly.

To compete effectively, we must continually imprasdsting products and introduce new products tlahieve market acceptance.

The telecommunications equipment industry is charaed by rapid technological changes, evolvindustry standards, changing ma
conditions and frequent new product and serviceduictions and enhancements. The introduction edlyets using new technologies or
adoption of new industry standards can make owtiagi products, or products under development, lebsor unmarketable. In order to ren
competitive and increase sales, we will need ticiatte and adapt to these rapidly changing tedwie$, enhance our existing products
introduce new products to address the changing désnaf our customers.

Many of our competitors have greater engineerirg) product development resources than we have. édfnave expect to continue to inv
substantial resources in product development #etsviour efforts to achieve and maintain profiigsbiwill require us to be selective a
focused with our research and development exparditid-urther, our existing and developmstailge products may become obsolete if
competitors introduce newer or more appealing teldgies. If these technologies are patented orr@py to our competitors, we may not
able to access these technologies.

If we fail to anticipate or respond in a cadfective and timely manner to technological depetents, changes in industry standarc
customer requirements, or if we experience anyifgigmt delays in product development or introdanti our business, operating results
financial condition could be affected adversely.

We may face circumstances in the future that wilkksult in impairment charges, including, but not lited to, significant goodwi
impairment charges.

If the fair value of any of our lonlived assets decreases as a result of an econtomidavn, a downturn in the markets where we saltipct:
and services or a downturn in our financial perfange and/or future outlook, we may be requiredetoprd an impairment charge on s
assets, including goodwill.




We are required to test intangible assets withfinde life periods for potential impairment anniyabhnd on an interim basis if there
indicators of a potential impairment. We also arguired to evaluate amortizable intangible assadsfixed assets for impairment if there
indicators of a possible impairment. One poteritidicator of impairment is the value of our markapitalization compared to our net b
value. Significant declines in our market capitaiian could require us to record material goodaild other impairment charges. Impairn
charges could have a negative impact on our restuitiperations and financial position, as well aglee market price of our common stock.

We rely on singlesource suppliers, which could cause delays, incesa costs or prevent us from completing custoroaters, all of whict
could materially harm our business.

We assemble our products using materials and coemi®supplied by various subcontractors and sugpl&e purchase critical compone
for our products, including injected molded partsl @onnectors from third parties, some of whomsamgle- or limitedsource suppliers. If al
of our suppliers are unable to ship critical comgmds, we may be unable to manufacture and shipuptedo our distributors or customers
the price of these components increases for argorear if these suppliers are unable or unwiliagdeliver, we may have to find anot
source, which could result in interruptions, ina®e costs, delays, loss of sales and quality domtoblems.

Further, the costs to obtain certain raw materdald supplies are subject to price fluctuations,civiiay be substantial, because of gl
market demands. Many companies utilize the samemnaterials and supplies in the production of tipeaducts as we use in our produ
Companies with more resources than us may havenpetiive advantage in obtaining raw materials angplies due to greater purchas
power. Some raw materials or supplies may be subjeegulatory actions, which may affect availablgplies. Furthermore, due to gen
economic conditions in the United States and glgbalur suppliers may experience financial diffibes, which could result in increas
delays, additional costs, or loss of a supplier.

The termination or interruption of any of theseatienships, or the failure of these manufacturersuppliers to supply components or
materials to us on a timely basis or in sufficignantities, likely would cause us to be unable &etrorders for our products and harm
reputation and our business. Identifying and quiald alternative suppliers would take time, invobignificant additional costs and may d¢
the production of our products. Further, if we d@dbt new supplier or assemble our product usinglimnative source of supply, we may n
to conduct additional testing of our products tswee the product meets our quality and performateedards. Any delays in delivery of
product to distributors or customers could be edéelh and our costs associated with the changedupt manufacturing could increase.

The failure of our thirdaarty manufacturers to manufacture the productsispand the failure of our suppliers of componamid raw materia
to supply us consistent with our requirements agutity, quantity and timeliness could materidiBrm our business by causing delays, lo
sales, increases in costs and lower gross profigims

Our success depends upon adequate protection ofgatent and intellectual property rights.

Our future success depends in part upon our ptapyigechnology. We attempt to protect our propmgttechnology through pater
trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets. Howekiese legal means afford us only limited protec@md may not adequately protect
rights or remedies to gain or keep any advantagemay have over our competitors. Accordingly, \@armot predict whether these protect
will be adequate, or whether our competitors watlelop similar technology independently, withouwdlating our proprietary rights.




Our competitors, who may have or could developoguée significant resources, may make substami@stments in competing technolog
or may apply for and obtain patents that will pratydimit, or interfere with our ability to manufare or market our products. Further, althc
we do not believe that any of our products infritige rights of others, third parties may in thaufaetclaim, our products infringe on their rig
and these third parties may assert infringemeimnslagainst us in the future.

We may litigate to enforce patents issued to ustartbfend against claimed infringement of the tsghf others or to determine the owners
scope, or validity of our proprietary rights ane thights of others. Any claim of infringement agdins could involve significant liabilities
third parties, could require us to seek licensemfthird parties, and could prevent us from marnufiitg, selling or using our products.
occurrence of this litigation, or the effect of aiverse determination in any of this type of litiga, could have a material adverse effect or
business, financial condition and results of openst

Our failure to protect or enforce our intellectpabperty rights could have a material adverse eff@cour business, results of operations
financial condition.

Further consolidation among our customers may resih the loss of some customers and may reduce meeeduring the pendency
business combinations and related integration ates.

We believe consolidation among our customers inftitere will continue in order for them to increas®mrket share and achieve gre
economies of scale. Consolidation has impactedaosiness as our customers focus on completing éssicombinations and integrating t
operations. In connection with this merger and &itjon activity, our customers may postpone oragdrorders for our product based
revised plans for technology or network expansiemding consolidation activity. Customers integmtlargescale acquisitions may a
reduce their purchases of equipment during thgiaten period, or postpone or cancel orders.

The impact of significant mergers among our custsma our business is likely to be unclear untinetime after such transactions
completed. After a consolidation occurs, a customay choose to reduce the number of vendors froinhaih purchases equipment and t
choose one of our competitors as its preferred merithere can be no assurance that we will contiougupply equipment to the surviv
communications service provider after a businessbioation is completed.

We are dependent on key personnel.

Our failure to attract and retain skilled persono@lild hinder the management of our business, esgarch and development, our sales
marketing efforts, and our manufacturing capab#itiOur future success depends to a significantedegpon the continued services of
senior management personnel, including Cheryl Paiiiek, our Chief Executive Officer and John P. Hilir Chief Operating Officer. We he
employment agreements with Ms. Beranek and Mr.tH&t provides that if we terminate the employnadrgither executive without cause c
the executive terminates her or his employmengéard reason, we would be required to make speqif@sainents to them as described in
employment agreements. We have key person liferanse on Ms. Beranek and Mr. Hill. Further, ourufet success also depends on
continuing ability to attract, retain and motivdtighly qualified managerial, technical and salesspenel. Our inability to retain or attr.
qualified personnel could have a significant negaéffect and thereby materially harm our busirsessfinancial condition.

10




Product defects or the failure of our products toest specifications could cause us to lose custonserd revenue or to incur unexpect
expenses.

If our products do not meet our customgrstformance requirements, our customer relatiosstripy suffer. Also, our products may con
defects or fail to meet product specifications. Aajure or poor performance of our products caelsult in:

- lack of or delayed market acceptance of our praguct

« delayed product shipments;

« unexpected expenses and diversion of resourceplace defective products or identify and corrbetdource of errors;
« damage to our reputation and our customer reldtipas

« delayed recognition of sales or reduced sales; and

« product liability claims or other claims for damaghat may be caused by any product defects oonpeaice failures.

Our products are often critical to the performanédelecommunications systems. Many of our supgkeaments contain limited warra
provisions. If these contractual limitations areenforceable in a particular jurisdiction or if weeaxposed to product liability claims that
not covered by insurance, a claim could harm ogirnass.

Our stock price has been volatile historically amgay continue to be volatile. The price of our commstock may fluctuate significantly.

The trading price of our common stock has beennaag continue to be subject to wide fluctuationsr €tock price may fluctuate in respo
to a number of events and factors, such as quastariations in operating results, announcementedainological innovations or new prodt
by us or our competitors, changes in financialnestes and recommendations by securities analy&sperating and stock price performe
of other companies that investors may deem comfmtalus, and new reports relating to trends inroarkets or general economic conditions.

In addition, the stock market is subject to pricel aolume fluctuations that affect the market pgider companies in general, and smal
capitalization, hightechnology companies like us in particular. Thiesed market and industry fluctuations may advgraéflect the price «
our common stock, regardless of our operating pedioce. Further, any failure by us to meet or exdbe expectations of financial analyst
investors is likely to cause a decline in our comratock price. Further, recent economic conditiaange resulted in significant fluctuations .
significant declines in stock prices for many comipa, including Clearfield. We cannot predict whke stock markets and the market for
common stock may stabilize. In addition, althoughr common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Stock Markeur common stock h
experienced low trading volume. Limited tradinduroe subjects our common stock to greater pricatility and may make it difficult for o
shareholders to sell shares at an attractive price.

Future sales of shares of our common stock in thebfic market may negatively affect our stock price.

Future sales of our common stock, or the perceptiahthese sales could occur, could have a sigmfinegative effect on the market pric
our common stock. In addition, upon exercise oftautding options, the number of shares outstandirmur common stock could increi
substantially. This increase, in turn, could dilfiéure earnings per share, if any, and could deptee market value of our common st
Dilution and potential dilution, the availabilityf @ large amount of shares for sale, and the pitiggibf additional issuances and sales of
common stock may negatively affect both the tragirige of our common stock and the liquidity of @ammon stock. These sales also
make it more difficult for us to sell equity sedig$ or equity-related securities in the futura &éitne and price that we would deem appropriate
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Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documenidinnesota law and other agreements could preventelay a change in contr
of our company.

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporatimd bylaws, Minnesota law and other agreementsnrale it more difficult for a thirgharty
to acquire, or discourage a third-party from atténgpto acquire, control of our company, including:

« the provisions of our bylaws setting forth the ath& notice and information requirements for shdddroproposals, includir
nominees for directors, to be considered propadyght before shareholde

« the right of our board of directors to establishrenthan one class or series of shares and todixelative rights and preferences of
such different classes or seri

« the provisions of Minnesota law relating to busgnesmbinations and control share acquisitions; and

« the provisions of our stock option plans allowimg the acceleration of vesting or payments of awap@nted under the plans in
event of specified events that result in a “chaimgeontrol” and provisions of agreements with certain of oueceive officer
requiring payments if their employment is termimbaad there is “change in contrc”

These measures could discourage or prevent a tekedws or changes in our management, even ifcgnisition or such changes would
beneficial to our shareholders. This may have atneg effect on the price of our common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Clearfield leases a 30,000 square foot facility5d80 Nathan Lane North in Plymouth, Minnesota cgtitgj of our corporate office
manufacturing and warehouse space. The lease corechem July 1, 2006 with rent commencing on Novenih@006. The lease expires
November 30, 2013. The lease is backed by an uitemmal, irrevocable letter of credit equal to apgmately one mont's rent. On Septemt
1, 2010, the Company entered into a license toaeradditional 7,338 square feet of adjacent warehepace for the five month period en
February 28, 2011, with an option to extend montimbnth through to August 31, 2011. This agreemeas replaced with another lice
agreement to rent the same warehouse space amtiigioresal 2,223 of adjoining office space for aalodf 9,531 square feet beginning Jul
2011 and continuing month to month with thirty daydice by either party until November 30, 2013.

We owned a 24,000 square foot production facilityAberdeen, South Dakota, which was partially Idased occupied. In June 2011,

Company completed the sale of the facility and lanthe amount of $725,000. (See Note B in the idéred Statements included in Item ¢
this Form 10-K.)
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There are no pending legal proceedings againstvahiing the Company for which the outcome is liktd have a material adverse effect u
its financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

PART II.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaqg Globak&taystem of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC understmabol “CLFD.” The following
table sets forth the quarterly high and low saléseg for our common stock for each quarter ofpthst two fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 High Low_
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 761 $ 5.2C
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 741 % 5.3¢
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 557 $ 3.9t
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $ 565 $ 4.5¢%
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201 High Low
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 424 % 2.82
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 6.5 $ 3.8t
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 721 % 4.1¢
Quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 82z $ 5.9C

The foregoing prices reflect inter-dealer priceghaut dealer markup, markdown, or commissionsraag not represent actual transactions.
Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock

There were approximately 325 holders of recordufammon stock as of September 30, 2012.

Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends on our commarkstWe currently intend to retain any earningsuse in our operations and do not int
in the foreseeable future to pay cash dividendsusrcommon stock.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table describes shares of our comistogk that are available on September 30, 201pdochase under outstanding stdise:
awards, or reserved for issuance under stiaded awards or other rights that may be granteabterfuture, under our equity compensa
plans:

Number of

securities
Number of remaining availab
securitiesto be ~ Weighted- for future issuanc

issued upon average exercise under equity
exercise of price of compensation pla
outstanding outstanding (excluding those
options, warran options, warran reflected in first
Plan Categor and rights and rights column)
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holder

2007 Stock Compensation PI 1,365,01 $ 2.2¢ 641,36¢
Stock Option Plan for Non Employee Directors 27,50( $ 1.12 -
Total 1,392,551 $ 2.27 641,36¢

All outstanding equity awards have been grantedyamt to shareholder-approved plans.

Issuer Repurchases

The Company withheld a total of 4,555 shares of @mmmon stock in connection with the cashless wretctse of stock options to pay
exercise price of such options, and for paymenéaxés upon the vesting of restricted stock prewoissued to employees. We currently are
authorized by our Board of Directors to make repases of our common stock.

The following table presents the total number @freb withheld during the fourth quarter of fisc@ll2 by month and the average price pait
share:

Total number ¢ Average pric

Period shares withhel paid per shal
July 1-31, 2012 - -
August -31, 2012 4,55t $ 4.94
September 1-30, 2012 - -
Total 4555 $ 4.94
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not Requirec
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

Statements made in this Annual Report on Form 1brkhe Companys other SEC filings, in press releases and ingiedéments, that are |
statements of historical fact are “forward-lookstgtements.” Such forwaldeking statements involve known and unknown riskssertaintie
and other factors which may cause the actual sesulperformance of the Company to be materialfffedint from the results or performau
expressed or implied by such forward-looking staets. The words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipateseeks” and similar expressio
identify forward-looking statements. Readers argioaed not to place undue reliance on these fahdaoking statements, which speak onl'
of the date the statement was made. The risks andrtainties that could cause actual results tferdihaterially and adversely from -
forward-looking statements include those risks dbed in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors.”

Overview of Business:The Company sells highly configurable fiber managetrand connectivity products to broadband serpiceider:
serving the FTTP, FTTB, FTTell site markets in the U.S. and in certain liditearkets outside the U.S., currently countrieshénCaribbeal
Central America and South America. The Comparsgles channels include direct to customer, thralistribution (channel) partners, an
original equipment suppliers who private labelpteducts. The Compars/products are sold by its sales employees angpémdient sale
representatives.

Critical Accounting Policies: In preparing our financial statements, we makevegts, assumptions and judgments that can hagmifican
impact on our revenues, income or loss from opamnatand net income or loss, as well as on the v@lwertain assets and liabilities on
balance sheet. We believe that there are sevaraliating policies that are critical to an underdtag of our historical and future performar
as these policies affect the reported amountsvafimees, expenses and significant estimates andnjeiy applied by management. While tl
are a number of accounting policies, methods atichates affecting our financial statements, areasdre particularly significant include:

*  Accounting for income taxes; and
*  Valuation and evaluating impairment of long-livessets and goodwiill.
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Income Taxes We account for income taxes in accordance with Aoting Standards Codification (“ASC740, under which deferr
income taxes are recognized based on the estirfistee tax effects of differences between the faianstatement and tax bases of asset
liabilities given the provisions of enacted tax aldeferred income tax provisions and benefitshaised on changes to the assets or liab
from year to year. In providing for deferred taxes& consider tax regulations of the jurisdictionswhich we operate, estimates of fu
taxable income, and available tax planning strategif tax regulations, operating results, or thditg to implement taxplanning strategic
vary, adjustments to the carrying value of defeteedassets and liabilities may be required. Aiaibn allowance is recorded when it is n
likely than not that a deferred tax asset will hetrealized. The recorded valuation allowanceaigetd on significant estimates and judgmr
and if the facts and circumstances change the trafuallowance could materially change.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, weognize the financial statement benefit of a tesgitpn only after determining that f
relevant tax authority would more likely than nostin the position following an audit. For taxsfiimns meeting the more likely than
threshold, the amount recognized in the finandelesnents is the largest benefit that has a grétader50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax atth. The Company recognizes interest and peasliccrued on any unrecognized
benefits as a component of income tax expense.

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had U.Srdéded state net operating loss (NOL) cdogwards of approximately $23,340,000
$21,270,000, respectively. The U.S. federal NOlrycorward amounts expire in fiscal years 2020 tigto 2028 if not utilized. The state N
carry forward amounts expire in fiscal year 201@tigh 2022 if not utilized. In fiscal year 2009etGompany completed an Internal Reve
Code Section 382 analysis of the loss carry-foraadd determined that all of the Company’s lossyefmrwards were utilizable and r
restricted under Section 382. The Company has pdated its Section 382 analysis subsequent to 268689oes not believe there have t
any events subsequent to 2009 that would impadarhéysis.

As part of the process of preparing our financiatesnents, we are required to estimate our inc@xdidbility in each of the jurisdictions
which we do business. This process involves esitigaur actual current tax expense together wseasing temporary differences resu
from differing treatment of items for tax and acoting purposes. These differences result in defetax assets and liabilities. We must
assess the likelihood that these deferred taxsasskbe recovered from future taxable income @ndhe extent we believe that recovery is
more likely than not or unknown, we must estabdisraluation allowance.

Prior to 2011, a valuation allowance had been aEmbwhich required the Company to evaluate itsréutaxable income after consideratiol
positive and negative evidence. If the valuatidovedince is reduced, the Company would record aonmectax benefit in the period in wh
that determination is made. If the valuation allosais increased, the Company would record additimeome tax expense,

Consequently, during the fourth quarter of fisosdy2011 and 2012, the Company reversed a portiibs valuation allowance in considerat
of all available positive and negative evidenceluding our historical operating results, currénaifcial condition, and potential future taxe
income. The reduction in the valuation allowancethe fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012 resultedaimoneash income tax benefit
$3,518,000 million. We recorded an income tax biewnéf3,324,000 for the year ended September 802 2compared to an income tax bel
$2,316,000 for the year ended September 30, 2011.
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Our future potential taxable income was evaluatsked on both historical profitability as well asieipated operating results for future ye
Based upon the assessment of all available evidémeeCompany reversed $3,518,000 million of adddi valuation allowance for the yi
ended September 30, 2012, which was recorded ag-tie income tax benefit. As of September 30,2@he Companyg only remainin
valuation allowance of approximately $975,000 edab state net operating loss carry forwards waale@xpect to utilize. The Company \
continue to assess the assumptions used to deteth@namount of our valuation allowance and maysidhe valuation allowance in futi
periods based on changes in assumptions of estinfiatiere income and other factors. If the remainiaduation allowance is reduced,
would record an income tax benefit in the pericgl\thluation allowance is reduced. If the remainialyation allowance is increased, we w(
record additional income tax expense.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.Slidfal jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictiorgased on its evaluation, the Company
concluded that it has no significant unrecognizedtenefits. With limited exceptions, the Compasyno longer subject to U.S. federal

state income tax examinations for fiscal yearsmgngrior to 1998. We are generally subject to e8eral and state tax examinations for al
years since 1998 due to our net operating losgfoawards and the utilization of the carryforwaidsyears still open under statute. In 2007
Company changed its fiscal year to September 30.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill The Company’s londived assets at September 30, 2012 consisted pepsg plant an
equipment, patents and goodwill. The Company revidgwe carrying amount of its property, plant andigepent and patents if events
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of the assets may not be recoverable. Wieneview indicates the carrying amc
of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum afitilne fundiscounted cash flows expected to be gtkby the assets, the Company recog!
an asset impairment charge against operationfiéasitnount by which the carrying amount of the ingzhasset exceeds its fair value.

Determining fair values of property, plant and gooént and patents using a discounted cash flowaddtivolves significant judgment a
requires the Company to make significant estimate$ assumptions, including longrm projections of cash flows, market conditioms
appropriate discount rates. Judgments are basadgtamical experience, current market trends, ottagons with external valuation special
and other information. If facts and circumstanceange, the use of different estimates and assungptould result in a materially differ
outcome. The Company generally develops these detedased on recent sales data for existing pigdplanned timing of new prod
launches, and estimated expansion of the FTTP marke

The Company reviews the carrying amount of goodatilhually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal yaad more frequently if events
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgmgunt of the assets may not be recoverablehelfcarrying amount of a reporting
exceeds its fair value, the Company measures tbsitge goodwill impairment loss based on an aliocabf the estimate of fair value of |
reporting unit to all of the underlying assets &adbilities of the reporting unit, including any guiously unrecognized intangible assets.
excess of the fair value of a reporting unit ovee amounts assigned to its assets and liabiliiehe implied fair value of goodwill. /
impairment loss is recognized to the extent thegperting unit's recorded goodwill exceeds the ietpfair value of goodwill. The Compa
utilizes a market capitalization approach for tegtits goodwill, whereby a significant reductionaar market capitalization or in the carry
amount of net assets of a reporting unit couldlteéswan impairment charge. This test for the pgramded September 30, 2012 resulted |
change to goodwill from the prior period. Durirgetprior quarter ends, there were no triggeringisvéhat indicated impairment existed
there were no adjustments to goodwill. An impairmkrss would be based on significant estimates jaddments and if the facts ¢
circumstances change a potential impairment coale la material impact.

17




No impairment of lon-lived assets or goodwill has occurred during tearg ended September 30, 2012 or 2011, respectively
Results of Operation

Year ended September 30, 2012 compared to year ead8eptember 30, 2011

Revenues for the fiscal year 2012 increased 6%3%4%4,000 from revenue of $35,193,000 in 2011veRee growth was experienced fi
existing clients as well as from the developmeme# accounts within the telecommunications inqusthe growth in revenue includes ge
from within Tier 3 Carriers, as well as from an egieg presence associated with Tier 2 Carriers hdne a national footprint. The increas
revenue includes the gains in product sales toneeging contractors providing Engineer, Furnish brsdallation (EF&I) services to telco &
cable broadband operators. Revenues derived fristnbdtor arrangements increased as additiondtiloigors are now representing
Company as compared to the prior year. In additiemgnue gains were also gained in our builgtiat market serving OEM customers. Tt
revenue increases in fiscal 2012 were offset byelorvenues to system integrators in the compaadaied in fiscal 2011. Revenues w
positively affected by deployments associated withAmerican Recovery and Reinvestment Act (stismfilunds) in both periods.

As a result of the above factors, revenues in figear 2012 to commercial data networks and broadsarvice providers were 87% of sale:
$32,553,000, while revenues associated with bweHgrint manufacturing for original equipment manutaets outside of tt
telecommunications market were 13% of sales, ®#284000, for fiscal 2012. For fiscal year 201 Vemues to commercial data networks
broadband service providers were 87% of sales,36;683,000, while revenues associated with buigrinot manufacturing for origin
equipment manufacturers outside of the telecomnatioics market were 13% of sales, or $4,560,000.

Cost of sales for the fiscal year 2012 was $22(B8,an increase of $1,654,000, or 8% from theZ&20000 in fiscal year 2011. Gross ma
was 40.8% in fiscal year 2012, as compared to 4¥of%scal year 2011. Gross profit increased 4¥%$627,000, from $14,658,000 for fis
year 2011 to $15,286,000 for fiscal year 2012. {iéee-over-year increase in cost of goods and grosstsad result of increased revenue.

Selling, general and administrative expense farafiyear 2012 was $11,011,000 compared to $10,08%@r fiscal year 2011, relative
unchanged between periods. Selling expense, whidndes engineering and marketing expense, was&Dd0 in fiscal year 2012 ver:
$6,600,000 in fiscal 2011, and increase of $858,0®€lling and engineering expenses increased GJ08mainly as a result of additio
headcount and associated expenses, while marletpenses increased $150,000, mainly as a reshigbér marketing and trade show ¢
in fiscal 2012. Offsetting these increases was @edese in general and administrative expenses.r@lemed administrative expenses v
$3,553,000 in fiscal 2012 versus $4,342,000 inafisear 2011, a decrease of $789,000, mainly dwe decrease of $729,000 in incen
compensation related to the achievement of objestin fiscal 2012.

Income from operations for fiscal year 2012 wa®%8,000 compared to $3,716,000 for fiscal year 200His increase is due to the increas
revenue and a decrease in incentive compensatpmsmnee for fiscal year 2012.
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Interest income in fiscal year 2012 was $102,000mared to $110,000 for the fiscal year 2011. Theretese is a result of declining inte
rates resulting in lower returns on our investmente Company invests its excess cash primarilyDiC-backed bank certificates of dep
and money market accounts.

The Company recorded no other income in fiscal 2@b#hpared to $26,000 in fiscal year 2011. Thiatisbutable to rental income from «
Aberdeen, SD facility which was sold in June 20fL.ivlaich time the rental arrangement ended.

Income taxes for fiscal year 2012 was a benefi3;824,000. The total valuation allowance reverhathg fiscal year 2012 was approxima
$5,100,000. The valuation allowance reversed irfdbeth quarter was $3,518,000 and was includetiérincome tax benefit for the year.
Income taxes for fiscal year 2011 was a benef#2816,000. In fiscal year 2011, the Company redepproximately $3,920,000 of its
valuation allowance. The valuation allowance reg@éii the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 wagl82,000 and was included in the income
tax benefit for the year. Additional componentstaf fiscal 2011 net income tax benefit includecedefd tax amortization of goodwill of
$75,000, federal alternative minimum tax of $67,08@d various state taxes of $24,000.

Net income for fiscal year 2012 was $7,701,000@63% per share for basic and $0.60 for diluted, mamed to $6,167,000 or $0.51 per b
and $0.48 per diluted share for the year 2011.ifbeease in net income was primarily due to oureased strategic investment of sales
marketing programs, continued product acceptareteditove increased revenue, and the reversal ofteop of the valuation allowance rela
to deferred tax assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

As of September 30, 2012, our principal sourceaamfidlity was our cash and cash equivalents andt-¢bion investments. Those sources |
$14,785,000 at September 30, 2012, compared td 30800, at September 30, 2011. Our excess cashasted mainly in certificates
deposit backed by the FDIC and money market acsolie majority of our funds are insured by the EDhvestments considered loteyr
are $4,572,000 at September 30, 2012, compared, 7®%000 at September 30, 2011. We believe thébrmd balances of shakerm cas
and investments along with longrm investments provide a more accurate indicatibour available liquidity. At September 30, 201B¢
Company had combined balances of shemnta cash and investments and long term investnodr#$9,357,000 as compared to $15,837,0
September 30, 2011. We have no long-term debt atidigs at September 30, 2012 or 2011, respectively.

Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseal ynded September 30, 2012 totaled $3,826,0@¢h @avided by operations included
income of $7,701,000, which included non-cash esgpenfor depreciation and amortization of $405,060ckbased compensation
$471,000, and losses on disposal of assets of @24dlong with a nowmash gain from deferred taxes of $3,437,000. Césmmg workin
capital items providing cash included a decreasscoounts receivable of $206,000 reflecting lovwades levels in the fourth quarter of 2C
Changes in working capital items using cash inclindeeases in inventory of $213,000, an increasattier current assets of $307,000, a
decrease in accounts payable and accrued expeh$4s023,000. Changes in accounts payable and edtaxpenses reflect a decreas
employee compensation accruals of $639,000 retatedtentive payments.

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseal ynded September 30, 2011 totaled $5,297,0@¢h @avided by operations included
income of $6,167,000, which included non-cash esperfor depreciation of $359,000, stdised compensation of $535,000, and gait
disposals of assets of $44,000, mainly relatechéosale of the Aberdeen, SD facility, along witln@n-cash gain from deferred taxes
$2,407,000. Changes in working capital items miimg cash included an increase in accounts recleivaft$16,000 reflecting a lower num
of days outstanding due to early payment terms sétreral customers. Changes in working capitalgusatsh include increases to inventor
$1,244,000 due to higher stocking levels requicethéet increased demand and accounts payable ancdtd@xpenses of $1,958,000. Inclt
within this amount are employee compensation atxinareasing by $1,700,000 mainly due to incenpagments related to fiscal 2011,
an accounts payable increase of $251,000.
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Investing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, we $591,000 in cash for the purchase of equipmahpatents. Included in this amount w
purchases for manufacturing and engineering equiprimethe amount of $295,000, IT equipment andvgarfé purchases of $129,000,

additional patent cost of $40,000. During the sgmeeiod we purchased $11,942,000 of Fh&xked certificates of deposit and
approximately $2,819,000 of FDIGacked certificates of deposit. The result is adeerease in cash from investing activities of $9,300 ir
fiscal year 2012 as compared to fiscal year 20k Tompany intends to continue to invest in theesgary and appropriate manufactu
equipment to help maintain a competitive positinnmanufacturing capability but has no material cémants for capital expenditures

fiscal year 2013.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, wé $846,000 in cash for the purchase of equipnhecitided in this amount were purche
for manufacturing equipment in the amount of $3@8,&nd IT equipment and software purchases of $0R0,During the same period
purchased $1,887,000 of FDIC-backed certificateslagosit and sold approximately $2,332,000 of FD#&cked certificates of deposit.
fiscal year 2011 we received proceeds from the glafssets in the amount of $719,000. The majaftthese proceeds were from the sa
the Aberdeen facility which accounted for approxieta$660,000 of the proceeds. The result is @meease in cash from investing activi
of $418,000 in fiscal year 2011 as compared tafigear 2010.

Financing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, eeived $143,000 from employeqsrticipation and purchase of stock through our ByegE
Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) and $142,000 from shanse of stock as a result of employees and dieelxercising stock options. The
cash received from financing activities was $286,00

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 weivext $88,000 from employeegarticipation and purchase of stock through our Bygx
Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), $180,000 from therissuaf stock as a result of employees and direewescising stock options and $12,
from excess tax benefits from the exercise of stqtions. The net cash received from financingvits was $280,000.

The Company has current cash and cash equivaladtingestments with a maturity of less than oner ybat total $14,785,000 which
believe provides a strong financial position andngl with cash flow from operations will be suffisteto meet its working capital a
investment requirements for beyond the next 12 hwnThe Company intends on utilizing its availabbsh and assets primarily for
continued organic growth, as well as potential feitaetrategic transactions. However, future growitiganically or through acquisition, nr
require the Company to raise capital through aolditi equity or debt financing. There can be no @sgie that any such financing woulc
available on commercially acceptable terms.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemengsissued by the Financial Accounting Standards @oarother standard setting boc
that may have an impact on the Compangccounting and reporting. The Company believeg #Huch recently issued accoun
pronouncements and other authoritative guidancevfach the effective date is in the future eithéll mot have an impact on its accounting
reporting or that such impact will not be matetalts financial position, results of operationsdaash flows when implemented.

ITEM 7B. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITA TIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is subject to changes in market inteadss on cash, cash equivalents, and gkar-investments. These market risks hav
changed significantly since September 30, 201ricreases or decreases in interest rates will haveffect on these balances. At Septembe
2012 and 2011, the Company had cash and cash @&nisvand shorterm investments totaling $14,785,000 and $13,18D,010st of thi
balance was invested in interest-bearing money etatcounts or CD’s maturing within 12 months.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly data for the years ended September 3@ 26d 2011 was as follows:

Quarter Ende:
December 3: March 31, June 30, September 3

Statement of Operations Data 2011 2012 2012 2012

Net revenue $ 9,165,20: $7,112,09 $10,793,75 $ 10,402,91
Gross profit 3,794,28. 2,719,42° 4,556,77. 4,215,23!
Operating incom: 1,021,16! 147,05 1,782,51 1,324,14
Net income 999,59¢ 131,92° 1,741,96 4,827,70
Net income per share, Ba: $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01% 0.1£ % 0.3¢
Net income per share, Dilutt 0.0¢ 0.01 0.1¢ 0.37

Quarter Ende
December 3. March 31, June 30, September 3

Statement of Operations Data 2010 2011 2011 2011

Net revenue $ 7,246,66! $7,119,56. $10,124,66 $ 10,701,63
Gross profit 2,965,95. 2,893,73' 4,318,75. 4,479,91!
Operating incom 506,63 525,44( 1,286,71! 1,397,42
Net income 501,15¢ 532,48° 1,277,83 3,855,97.
Net income per share, Ba: $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢ % 0.11 $ 0.32
Net income per share, Dilutt 0.04 0.04 0.1C 0.3C
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Clearfield, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance shedt$eaffield, Inc. (a Minnesota corporation) as opteenber 30, 2012 and 2011, and
related statements of earnings, shareholdsrsity and cash flows for the years then endecdes@tiinancial statements are the responsibil
the Company’s management. Our responsibility exjaress an opinion on these financial statemexgsdon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaiasonable assurance about whether the finastagdments are free of material mis
statement. The Company is not required to haveywaoe we engaged to perform, an audit of its makcontrol over financial reporting. C
audit included consideration of internal controkep¥inancial reporting as a basis for designingitaptbcedures that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssin opinion on the effectiveness of the Compsnyternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opiniém audit also includes examining, on a test asvidence supporting the amounts
disclosures in the financial statements, assedsi@gaccounting principles used and significantnestés made by management, as we
evaluating the overall financial statement pregéria We believe that our audits provide a reabtmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Clearfield, Inc. as
September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the results afpigsations and its cash flows for the years theted in conformity with accountii
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

/s/Grant Thornton LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
December 4, 2012
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CLEARFIELD, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

September 3 September 3

2012 2011
Assets
Current Asset
Cash and cash equivalel $ 5,678,14. $ 11,281,02
Shor-term investment 9,107,001 1,849,00!
Accounts receivable, n 3,022,63! 3,228,86:
Inventories 2,971,61. 2,757,15,
Deferred taxe 1,491,47 994,00(
Other current assets 473,72t 170,24:
Total current asse 22,744,59 20,280,28
Property, plant and equipment, | 1,107,46: 986,03:
Other Asset:
Long-term investment 4,572,001 2,707,001
Goodwill 2,570,51. 2,570,51.
Deferred taxe 6,498,25! 3,558,79
Other 247,51, 199,46
Total other assets 13,888,27 9,035,77!
Total Assets $ 37,740,33 $ 30,302,09
Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 149229 $ 1,439,61
Accrued compensatic 1,470,23; 2,465,13;
Accrued expenses 54,26¢ 106,38:
Total current liabilities 3,016,79. 4,011,121
Deferred rent 37,64 61,79«
Total Liabilities 3,054,43 4,072,92
Commitment and Contingenci - -
Shareholder Equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 500 shares; n@shssued or outstandil - -
Common stock, $ .01 par value; 50,000,000 shareeared; 12,830,100 and 12,270,691 shares issued
outstanding at September 30, 2012 and 2011, résplgc 128,30: 122,70°
Additional paic-in capital 54,152,08 53,402,13
Accumulated deficit (19,594,48) (27,295,67)
Total shareholders’ equity 34,685,90 26,229,17
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 37,740,33 $ 30,302,09

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Net revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expense¢
Selling, general and administrati
Loss (Gain) on disposal of assets
Income from operation

Interest incom:
Other income

Income before income tax

Income tax benefit
Net income

Net income per share Basic
Net income per share Diluted

Shares used in calculation of net income per sl

Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.

CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
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Year Ended Year Ended
September 3 September 3
2012 2011
$ 37,473,96 $ 35,192,53
22,188,24 20,534,17
15,285,72 14,658,35
10,987,19 10,986,32

23,64¢ (44,179
11,010,84 10,942,14
4,274,88 3,716,20

102,01 109,59!

- 25,50(

102,01 135,09!
4,376,89! 3,851,30:
(3,324,29) (2,316,14)

$ 7,7014,19- $ 6,167,44
$ 0.6z $ 0.51
$ 0.6C $ 0.4¢
12,371,37 12,085,49
12,790,16 12,749,93




CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Common Stocl Additional Accumulater Total shareholders’
Shares  Amount paic-in capita deficit equity
Balance at September 30, 201 12,015,33 $120,15! $ 52,589,03 $(33,463 12) $ 19,246,06
Excess tax benefit of stock options exerci - 12,47¢ 12,47¢
Stoclk-based compensation expel 3, 42( 34 535,31: - 535,34
Employee stock purchase pl 32,22¢ 322 87,34t - 87,66
Exercise of stock optior 219,71: 2,19¢ 177,96¢ - 180,16t
Net income - 6,167,441 6,167,441
Balance at September 30, 201 12,270,69 $122 70° $ 53,402,13 $(27,295 67) $ 26,229,17
Stocl-based compensation expel 359,00( 3,59( 467,12( 470,71(
Employee stock purchase pl 28,92¢ 28¢ 142,25: - 142,54,
Exercise of stock optior 171,48 1,71¢ 140,56¢ - 142,28
Net income - - 7,701,19 7,701,19.
Balance at September 30, 201 12,830,10 $128 30: $ 54,152,08 $(19,594,48) $ 34,685,90

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfimancial statements.
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CLEARFIELD, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praVicle operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Gain on sale of asse
Stocl-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Other current asse
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipir
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Patent addition
Sale of investments

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under emelstyock purchase pli
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivz
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year fc
Income Taxe

Year ended Year ended
September 3C  September 3(
2012 2011

$ 7,701,19: $ 6,167,44!
404,76! 358,50:
(3,436,93) (2,407,43)
23,64¢ (44,177

470,71( 535,34°

206,22¢ 15,51¢
(212,85;) (1,244,84)
(307,410 (41,169
(1,023,01) 1,958,02
3,826,33. 5,297,21!
(550,61f) (745,79()
(11,942,00) (1,886,65)

- 718,53°

(40,429 -
2,819,001 2,331,69!
(9,714,04) 417,77¢

142 ,54. 87,66

142,28« 180,16¢

- 12,47¢

284,82¢ 280,31:
(5,602,88) 5,995,30!
11,281,02 5,285,71!

$ 5,678,14. $ 11,281,02
163,75t 48,26:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES

Description of Business: Clearfield, Inc., (the Company) is a manufacturtadroad range of standard and custom passiveectinity
products to customers throughout the United Staféese products include fiber distribution systeamtical components, Outside Plant (C
cabinets, and fiber and copper cable assembli¢ssémae the communication service provider, inalgdiiber-to-thePremises (FTTP), lar
enterprise, and original equipment manufactureESM®) markets.

Revenue Recognition:Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenca afrangement exists, the product has been delivéne fee i
fixed, acceptance by the customer is reasonablgineand collection is probable. This generallxws upon shipment of product to
customer. The Company records freight revenuescbilb customers as revenue and the related shigmiddhandling cost in cost of sa
Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are presented on a net basis.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid investmenith original maturities of three months or leesbe cas
equivalents. Cash equivalents at September 3@ 20d 2011, respectively consist entirely of shenn money market accounts.

The Company maintains cash balances at severalcfadanstitutions, and at times, such balancegeadnsured limits. The Company has
experienced any losses in such accounts and bglieigenot exposed to any significant credit gkcash.

Investments: The Company currently invests its excess cash ik bartificates of deposit (CB) that are fully insured by the Federal Deg
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) with a term of not mtlian three years. C®with original maturities of more than three manéne reported
held-to-maturity investments and are recorded airiimed cost, which approximates fair value. Thaurigy dates of our CI¥ at Septemb
30, 2012 are as follows:

Less than one ye: $ 9,107,001
1-3 years 4,572,001
Total $13,679,00
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Accounts Receivable: Credit is extended based on the evaluation of tomes’s financial condition and collateral is generalbt nequirec
Accounts that are outstanding longer than the aohial payment terms are considered past due.Cbhapany determines its allowance
considering a number of factors, including the tbraf time trade receivables are past due, the @oyip previous loss history, the custorger’
current ability to pay its obligation to the Compaand the condition of the general economy andrtlastry as whole. The Company wr
off accounts receivable when they become uncoliestpayments subsequently received on such rddeiware credited to the allowance
doubtful accounts. The following table illustratedances and activity for fiscal years 2012 anti120

Balance a Charged t Balance a

Beginning  Cost and End of

of Period Expense!  Deduction: Period
September 30, 201 $ 9795 $ - $ - $ 97,95(
September 30, 201 97,95( - - 97,95(

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The financial statements include the following fingl instruments: cash and cash equivalents,
term investments, accounts receivable, accountaljh@yand accrued expenses. All financial instrusiecdrrying values approximate f
values because of the short-term nature of theuimstnts.

Inventories: Inventories consist of finished goods, raw materiahd work in process and are stated at the loWeaverage cost !
market. Inventory is valued using material colstispr charges, and allocated factory overhead elsamgd consists of the following:

September 3 September 3

2012 2011
Raw materials $ 2,300,38' $ 2,158,64
Work-in-process 336,29¢ 304,79:
Finished goods 334,93t 293,71;

$ 297161 $ 2,757,15

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment are recorded at &ghificant additions or improvements extendinges
lives are capitalized, while repairs and mainteeaae charged to expense when incurred. Depretigiprovided in amounts sufficient
relate the cost of assets to operations over #stimated useful lives. Estimated useful livethefassets are as follows:

Years
Equipment 3-7
Leasehold improvemen 7-10 or life of least
Vehicles 3

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shoftthe remaining term of the lease or estiméfedf the asset.

28




NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued
Property, plant and equipment consist of the foitanat:

September 3 September 3

2012 2011
Manufacturing Equipmer 1,316,76: 1,188,96
Office Equipmen 1,823,28 1,720,00
Leasehold Improvemen 127,88: 127,88:
Vehicles 171,74: 133,19¢

3,439,67! 3,170,05:
Less accumulated depreciation 2,332,20: 2,184,02,

$ 1,107,46' $ 986,03:

Depreciation expens $ 403,92" $ 358,50:

Goodwill: The Company analyzes its goodwill testing for imnpeant annually in the fourth quarter or at an imeperiod when events occur
circumstances change that would more likely tharreduce the fair value of a reporting unit beldsvdarrying amount.

The Company assesses the valuation or potentiaifmpnt of its goodwill annually. We consider ot book value and market capitaliza
when we test for goodwill impairment because weeheansolidated our reporting units in prior yeauts ithe parent company, resulting in
reporting unit. If the carrying amount of a repogtiunit exceeds its fair value, the Company meastire possible goodwill impairment |
based on an allocation of the estimate of fair @abfi the reporting unit to all of the underlyingsats and liabilities of the reporting u
including any previously unrecognized intangibleeds. The excess of the fair value of a reportinig @ver the amounts assigned to its a
and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwiAn impairment loss is recognized to the extdrdt a reporting unit's recorded good
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. Thisttéor the period ended September 30, 2012 resuited change to goodwill from the pr
period.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company assesses potential impairments toritslived assets or asset groups when there is evi
that events occur or changes in circumstancesatalibhat the carrying amount of an asset or assapgnay not be recovered. An impairn
loss is recognized when the carrying amount oflding-ived asset or asset group is not recoverable andegls its fair value. The carry
amount of a londived asset or asset group is not recoverabledkiteeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flowsoteg to result from tl
use and eventual disposition of the asset or ggsap. Any required impairment loss is measurethasamount by which the carrying amc
of a longlived asset or asset group exceeds its fair vahdeisrecorded as a reduction in the carrying valuthe related asset or asset gi
and a charge to operating results. Intangible asgigh indefinite lives are tested annually for mimment and in interim periods if certain eve
occur indicating that the carrying value of theamgible assets may be impaired. No impairment ngditved assets has occurred during ar
the periods presented.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Income Taxes:The Company records income taxes in accordancethgthiability method of accounting. Deferred taxae recognized for t
estimated taxes ultimately payable or recoverablsetl on enacted tax law. The Company establisheduation allowance to reduce
deferred tax assets when it is more likely thanthat a deferred tax asset will not be realizali(fanges in tax rates are reflected in the
provision as they occur.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes weoghize the financial statement benefit of a tasitian only after determining that t
relevant tax authority would more likely than neistin the position following an audit. For tax pioss meeting the more likely than |
threshold, the amount recognized in the finanditesnents is the largest benefit that has a grédasger50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax arith. The Company recognizes interest and persatdiecrued on any unrecognized
benefits as a component of income tax expense.

Stock-Based Compensation We measure and recognize compensation expensal feiockbased payments at fair value over the reqt
service period. We use the Black-Scholes optiorinmgi model to determine the weighted average falue of options. Equitpase:
compensation expense is included in selling, géreerd administrative expenses. The determinatiofiawfvalue of stocksased payme
awards on the date of grant using an oppaning model is affected by our stock price aslveal by assumptions regarding a numbe
subjective variables. These variables include,dvatnot limited to, the expected stock price vbtatover the term of the awards, and ac
and projected employee stock option exercise behavi

The expected terms of the options are based onai@hs of historical and expected future emplogeercise behavior. The rigkee interes
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rates at tleead@rant with maturity dates approximately egoahe expected life at grant date. Volatilit
based on historical and expected future volatdiftyhe Companys stock. The Company has not historically issugddividends and does r
expect to in the future. Forfeitures are estimatetthe time of the grant and revised, if necessarsubsequent periods if actual forfeitures d
from estimates. The Company uses a forfeitureab1€%.

The weighted average per share fair value of optignanted during the years ended September 30, 2042011 was $4.12 and $4.1¢

factors change and we employ different assumptfiotise determination of the fair value of grantduture periods, the related compense
expense that we record may differ significantlyniravhat we have recorded in the current periods.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Net Income Per Share:Basic and diluted net income per share is compbiedlividing net income by the weighted average nemtd
common shares outstanding.

Weighted average common share outstanding forehesyended September 30, 2012 and 2011 were asgoll

Year ended September ! 2012 2011
Net income $ 7,701,19. $ 6,167,44
Weighted average common sha 12,371,37 12,085,49
Dilutive potential common shares 418,79t 664,44
Weighted average dilutive common shares outstar 12,790,16 12,749,93
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 0.6z $ 0.51

Diluted $ 0.6C $ 0.4¢

Employee stock options in the amount of 323,50020@ 000 for fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respdgtiveave been excluded from the dilu
net income per common share calculation becaugeetkercise prices were greater than the markeepf the Compang’ common stock ai
were considered anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates:The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedha United States
America requires management to make estimates ssuhngptions that affect the reported amounts oftsisswl liabilities, related revenues
expenses and disclosure about contingent assetgailiies at the date of the financial statengenBignificant estimates include the defe
tax asset valuation allowance and reserves omeentory and accounts receivables. Actual resuidtg differ materially from these estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:
From time to time, new accounting pronouncemengsissued by the Financial Accounting Standards @oarother standard setting boc
that may have an impact on the Compangccounting and reporting. The Company believeg Huch recently issued accoun

pronouncements and other authoritative guidancevfach the effective date is in the future eitheéll mot have an impact on its accounting
reporting or that such impact will not be matet@its financial position, results of operationsdacash flows when implemented.

31




NOTE B — COMMITMENTS AND FACILITIES

Plymouth Facility: The Company leases office and manufacturingif@slin Plymouth, MN for its ongoing operationshi§ operating lea:
expires November 30, 2013. The Company also lezsésus pieces of office equipment. For the yeaided September 30, 2012 and 2
total rent expense was $406,000 and $384,000 rixsglgc At September 30, 2012, the future minimueade payments required ur
operating lease agreements are as follows:

Year ending September ; Operating leas:
2013 $ 281,68

2014 51,05

2015 87¢

Total minimum lease payments $ 333,61

Aberdeen Facility: During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, the @any received and accepted a purchase offer fofattiity. In Juni
2011, the Company completed the sale of the fadilitd land in the amount of $725,000. The finalcpeals to the Company after transac
costs were $660,000. We recorded a gain on theoféthese assets of approximately $37,000 in thid tiuarter of fiscal 2011.

NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, estdbfiom the undesignated shares different classegrigs of shares and may fix the rele
rights and preferences of shares in any classrimssdhe Company is authorized to issue 500 strpeeferred stock and 50,000,000 shart
common stock at $.01 par value. The Company hassaéd any shares of preferred stock.

Stock-Based CompensationThe Company’s stockased compensation plans are administered by thg&usation Committee of the Bo
of Directors, which selects persons to receive dwand determines the number of shares subjecddo &@vard and the terms, conditic
performance measures and other provisions of ttaecaw

Stock Options: The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricimglehto estimate fair value of stoblased awards with the followi
weighted average assumptions for the years endaeiSber 30:

2012 2011
Expected volatility 82% 81%
Expected life (in years 6 year 6 year
Expected dividend 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 0.9(% 1.65%
Weighte-average gra-date fair value $ 412 % 4.14

The Company had two stock option plans which astlss an incentive for directors, officers, anceomployees. The directsrplan wa
terminated in February of 2010 and 67,500 authdrlzet unissued shares were removed from the platios are generally granted at
market values determined on the date of grant asting normally occurs over a three to fiyear period. The maximum contractual ter
normally six years. However, options granted t@ctiors have a one year vesting period and a six gaaractual term. Shares issued L
exercise of a stock option are new shares as ogfogeeasury
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY - continued

shares. The employee plan has 641,369 shares ldgaita issue as of September 30, 2012. As of Septe 30, 2012, $2,475,941 of
unrecognized compensation expense related tovested awards is expected to be recognized oveighted average period of approxima
5.2 years. The Company recorded related compensestipense for the years ended September 30, 2@120dr1 of $470,710 and $535,3
respectively. There were 33,835 stock options Wexre exercised using a cashless method of exefdigeintrinsic value of options exercit
during the year the year ended September 30, 20d.2@11 was $672,900 and $1,237,000, respectively.

Option transactions under these plans during the geded September 30, 2012 and 2011 are summasZetlows:

Number o Weighted avera¢ Weighted averag

shares exercise prict fair value
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 1,126,000 $ 1.41
Grantec 320,92 6.2€ $ 4.1¢
Cancelled or Forfeite (21,939 1.72
Exercised (233,329 1.2¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 1,191,65 $ 2.74
Grantec 17,00( 5.5¢ $ 412
Cancelled or Forfeite (1,000 6.3€
Exercised (178,48) 1.11
Outstanding at September 30, 2012 1,029,17' $ 3.07

The following table summarizes information concegioptions exercisable under the Options Plans at:

Weighted average remaining

Year ende( Exercisable contractual life Weighted average exercise pr
September 30, 201 700,148 4.98 year: $4.78
September 30, 201 525,930 5.33 year: $1.85

The following table summarizes information concegnoptions currently outstanding at:

Weighted average

remaining contractual Weighted average Aggregate  intrinsic
Year Endec Number outstandin life exercise pric value
September 30, 201 1,029,17¢ 4.78 year: $3.07 $2,101,541
September 30, 201 1,200,32¢ 5.39 year: $2.72 $3,814,06¢

Restricted Stock: The Company’s 2007 Stock Compensation Plan permittsCompensation Committee to grant other stoded award
The Company awards key employees restricted st@kgthat vest over three to five years.
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY - continued
Restricted stock transactions during the year esdgdember 30, 2012 and 2011 are summarized asvioll

Weighted
average

Number grant date
of shares fair value

Unvested shares at September 30, - 13,00 $ 2.5¢
Grantec - -
Vested (4,339 2.5¢

Unvested shares at September 30, - 8,66¢ 2.5¢
Grantec 359,00( 5.1C
Vested (4,337 2.5¢

Unvested at September 30, 2012 363,33t $ 5.07

Employee Stock Purchase PlanThe Clearfield Corporation 2010 Employee Stock Rase Plan (“Stock Planallows participatin
employees to purchase shares of the Compgaogmmon stock at a discount through payroll dedost The Stock Plan is available to
employees subject to certain eligibility requirentseTerms of the Stock Plan provide that partigiigaemployees may purchase the Compginy
common stock on a voluntary after tax basis. Eg®s may purchase the Compangbmmon stock at a price that is no less tharotler of
85% of the fair market value of one share of comrmstmtk at the beginning or end of each stock pwehseriod or phase. The Stock Ple
carried out in sixnonth phases, with phases beginning on July 1 amdady 1 of each calendar year. For the phasettttd on December :
2011 and June 30, 2012, employees purchased 14r2b6¥7,662 shares at a price of $6.24 and $4.08haee, respectively. For the phase
ended on December 31, 2010 and June 30, 2011, geesiqurchased 17,710 and 14,519 shares at aqgiris2.13 and $3.44 per she
respectively. As of September 30, 2012, the Comeasywithheld approximately $38,386 from employgasicipating in the phase that be
on July 1, 2012. After the employee purchase ore Bih 2012, 238,842 shares of common stock weréableafor future purchase under
ESPP.

NOTE D — INCOME TAXES

Realization of net operating loss cafoyward and other deferred tax temporary differsnaee contingent upon future taxable earnings.
Companys deferred tax asset was reviewed for expecteizatidn by assessing the available positive andatieg factors surrounding
recoverability. During the fourth quarter of fisgeear 2012, the Company reversed a substantidiopoof the deferred tax asset valua
allowance to record the amount of deferred taetasthat we believe are more likely than not tardsdized based upon estimates of fL
taxable income. The Company considered all avigilgpositive and negative evidence, including oistdnical operating results, curr
financial condition, and potential future taxabhedme. The reduction in the valuation allowancehim fourth quarter resulted in a noast
income tax benefit of approximately $3.5 milliom &ddition, the company released valuation allowasach quarter this fiscal year in
amount in which the tax benefit generated offskéstax provision realized from the quartetaxable income. The total valuation allowe
released during the year ended September 30, 288 2pproximately $5.1 million.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES - continued

The Company has a remaining valuation allowanceappiroximately $975,000 relating to state net ojpegaloss carryforwards we do 1
expect to utilize. Approximately $172,000 of thduaion allowance is short term and $803,000 igjimrm, against its remaining deferred
assets. The Company will continue to assess thamge®ns used to determine the amount of our valonadllowance and may adjust
valuation allowance in future periods based on ghann assumptions of estimated future income émer dactors. If the valuation allowanci
reduced, we would record an income tax benefihefieriod the valuation allowance is reduced. ¢f ¥aluation allowance is increased,
would record additional income tax expense.

Significant components of deferred income tax asaatl liabilities are as follows at:

September 3 September 3

2012 2011
Current deferred income tax assets (liabiliti
Inventories $ 180,63¢ $ 142,64t
Accrued expenses and reser 160,80¢ 148,91.
Prepaid expenst (158,25 (54,35)
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 1,480,20. 1,972,001
1,663,39 2,209,21.
Valuation allowance (171,919  (1,215,21)
Net current deferred tax asset $ 149147 $ 994,00(
Long-term deferred income tax assets (liabilitie
Intangibles $ (7,719 $ 9,74
Property and equipment depreciat 75,53 71,11
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 7,637,59. 8,639,72!
Stock based compensati 53,93 36,42%
Accrued expenses and reser 13,33¢ 22,05¢
Goodwill (471,08 (393,22)
7,301,591 8,385,84
Valuation allowance (803,339  (4,827,05()
Net long-term deferred tax asset $ 6,498,25. $ 3,558,79

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had U.Srdédet operating loss (NOL) carry forwards of appmately $23.3 million. The U.
federal net operating loss carry forwards will egpghn 2021 through 2028 if not utilized. As of S&spber 30, 2011, the Company had |
federal net operating loss carry forwards of appnately $27.2 million which were set to expire iacal years 2020 to 2028. The Comg
reversed all of the valuation allowance agains tidferred tax asset as of September 30, 2012.

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had statepeghting loss carry forwards of approximately 221illion. The state net operating |

carry forwards will expire in 2013 through 2022dt utilized. The Company had a partial valuattiowance against this deferred tax ass
of September 30, 2011. As of September 30, 20E1Ctmpany had state net operating loss carry falsvaf approximately
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES - continued

$22.3 million, which were set to expire in fiscatays 2012 to 2022. As of September 30, 2012, thwireng valuation allowance
approximately $975,000 relates to state net opeyéddiss carryforwards that we do not expect tozetil

The Company completed an Internal Revenue CodeoBe®82 analysis of the loss carry forwards in 2608 determined then that all of
companys loss carry forwards are utilizable and not rettd under Section 382. The Company has not updeteSlection 382 analy:
subsequent to 2009 and does not believe thereldfemreany events subsequent to 2009 that would inipaanalysis.

Deferred tax assets relating to equity compensdtire been reduced to reflect tax deductions irexof previously recorded tax bent
through the year ended September 30, 2012. Qilardé and state NOL carry forwards referenced almiv€eptember 30, 2012 incl
approximately $1.1 million and $250,000, respedyivd income tax deductions in excess of previousigorded tax benefits for equity ba
awards. Although these additional tax deductiorsraflected in NOL carry forwards referenced abhdhe related tax benefit will not
recognized until the deductions reduce taxes payaftcordingly, since the tax benefit does notucedthe Companyg’current taxes payable
2012, these tax benefits are not reflected in tom@anys deferred tax assets presented above. The tafitbehapproximately $390,000
September 30, 2012 related to these excess dedsigtith be reflected as a credit to additional paidtapital when recognized.

The following is a reconciliation of the federahtsttory income tax rate to the consolidated eféectax rate as a percent of gae-income fa
the following periods ended:

September 3  September 3

2012 2011
Federal statutory ra 34% 34%
State income taxe 1% 2%
Permanent difference 4% 5%
Change in valuation allowance (115%) (101%)
Tax rate (7€%) (6C%)

Components of the income tax expense (benefitasfellows for the periods ended:

September 3 September 3

2012 2011
Current:
Federa $ 87,19¢ $ 67,70(
State 24,63" 23,59:
111,83( 91,29:
Deferred:
Federa 1,533,13! 1,396,29;
State 97,73¢ 116,28
1,630,87 1,512,58.
Valuation allowance (5,067,00) (3,920,01)
Income tax benefit $ (3,324,29)$ (2,316,14)

As of September 30, 2012 and 2011, the currentigctax payable was approximately $2,000 and $4a@8fkectively.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES - continued

The Company is required to recognize the finansiatement benefit of a tax position only after dateing that the relevant tax autho
would more likely than not sustain the positiondaling an audit. For tax positions meeting the miicely than not threshold, the amou
recognized in the financial statements is the kstrgmnefit that has a greater than 50 percentilid@tl of being realized upon ultim
settlement with the relevant tax authority. The @any applies the interpretation to all tax posiidor which the statute of limitatio
remained open. The Company had no liability foregngnized tax benefits. The Company did not re@agany interest or penalties during
years ended September 30, 2012 or 2

The Company is subject to income taxes in the f&&eral jurisdiction, and various state jurisdiogo Tax regulations within each jurisdict
are subject to the interpretation of the relatedléavs and regulations and require significant judgt to apply. With few exceptions,

Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, stat local, income tax examinations by tax authesifor fiscal years ending prior to 19
We are generally subject to U.S. federal and statexaminations for all tax years since 1998 dueur net operating loss carryforwards
the utilization of the carryforwards in years stiien under statute. The Company changed its figzalin 2007 to September 30.

NOTE E — CONCENTRATIONS

Suppliers: The Company purchases critical components fopooducts, including injection molded parts androectors from third partie
some of whom are single- or limitesthurce suppliers. If any of our suppliers are uadbl ship critical components, we may be unab
manufacture and ship products to our distributorsustomers. If the price of these components asas for any reason, or if these supplier
unable or unwilling to deliver, we may have to fiadother source, which could result in interrupgidncreased costs, delays, loss of sale
quality control problems.

Customers: One customer comprised approximately 22% and 21%taf sales for the periods ended September 3 a6d September :
2011, respectively.

At September 30, 2012, one customer accountedsr df accounts receivable. At September 30, 2044 customers accounted for 14%
10% of accounts receivable.

NOTE F — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a contributory 401(k) prafiiaring benefit plan, whereby eligible employees/ mantribute a portion of the
earnings, not to exceed annual amounts allowedruhddnternal Revenue Code. The Company matt®@%o of the first 3% and 50% of |
next 2% of the participant’s eligible compensattbat is contributed by the participant. The Comparcontributions under this plan w
$283,600 and $232,244 for the years ended Septe30b@012 and September 30, 2011

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management carried out an evaluatioder the supervision and with the participatidrthe Companys Chief Executiv
Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officdrtbe effectiveness of the design and operatiothefCompanys disclosure controls a
procedures (as such term is defined in Rule I5@&) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded) as of September 30, 2012. E
upon that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executdfficer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officesncluded that the Company
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaisitaining an adequate system of internal comvel financial reporting, as such terr
defined in Rule 1345(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision avith the participation of our management, inchgdiour Chie
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officave conducted an evaluation of the effectivenessuwfinternal control over financ
reporting based on the frameworklimernal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifnthe
Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, gemant concluded that, as of September 30, 20X2internal control over financi
reporting was effective.

This annual report does not include an attestaqort of the Companyg’ registered public accounting firm regarding ingércontrol ove
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndtject to attestation by the Compasyegistered public accounting firm pursuant tesub
the Securities and Exchange Commission that péh@i€Company to provide only management’s repathimannual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

No changes in the Compé’s internal control over financial reporting occuariduring the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012t thave materiall
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, the Company'’s internal control over financigborting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART III.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE.

Information required by Item 10 to be included iar dProxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting dfa®holders (the2013 Prox
Statement”)which will be filed with the Securities and Exchengommission pursuant to Regulation 14A within @i29s after the end of t
fiscal year for which this report is filed, is impmrated herein by reference into this section.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
The information required by Item 11 to be includiethe 2013 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by Item 12 to be includethe 2013 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by Item 13 to be includiethe 2013 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 to be includethe 2013 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.

PART IV.
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
€) Documents filed as part of this répor

(1) Financial Statements.

The financial statements of Clearfield, Inc. atediherewith under Iltem 8. “Financial Statementd &upplementary Datadf this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Certain financial statement scheduiese been omitted because they are not requirgtdapplicable, or the requir
information is provided in other financial statertgar the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Exhibits.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated
Number Description by Reference to
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, of APA Optits;. (n/k/a Clearfield, Ingexhibit 3.1 to Registrant’ Quarterly Report (
dated November 3, 1983 and Articles of AmendmeriedldDecember [Form 10Q for the quarter ended September
1983, July 30, 1987, March 22, 1989, Septemberl®@4 and August 12000
2000
3.1 (a) Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporatidated August 25, 2004 [Exhibit 3.1 to Registrarg’ Quarterly Report (
Form 10Q for the quarter ended September
2004
3.2 Bylaws, as amended and restated effective Febrliaryi999 of Clearfiel{Exhibit 3.2 to Registrarg’ Annual Report on Fof
Inc. (f/k/a APA Optics, Inc. 1C-KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1¢
10.1 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Exhibit 10.3a to Registrarg’ Annual Report ¢
Form 10KSB for the fiscal year ended March
1994
*10.2 Insurance agreement by and between the Registrdrmil K. Jain Exhibit 10.5 to Registrarg’ Annual Report d
Form 10K for the fiscal year ended March
1990
*10.3 Form of Agreement regarding Indemnification of Biers and Officers wilExhibit 10.7 to Registrarg’ Annual Report ¢
Messrs. Jain, Olsen, Ringstad, Roth, Von Wald amck&rman Form 10K for the fiscal year ended March
2002
10.4 Lease Agreement dated May 31, 2006 between Bass Reklty, LLC anExhibit 10.14 to Registrarg’ Annual Report @
Clearfield, Inc. Form 10K for the fiscal year ended March
2006.
*10.5 2007 Stock Compensation Plan, as amended Appendix A to the Registrarst’ Proxy Stateme
for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
on February 24, 201
*10.6 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008 by hatlee|Exhibit 10.26 to Registrarg’Current Report on f
Clearfield, Inc. and Cheryl P. Berant 8-K dated December 16, 20!
*10.7 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008 by bhatlee|Exhibit 10.27 to Registrarg’Current Report on f
Clearfield, Inc. and John P. Hi 8-K dated December 16, 20!
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Number Description Incorporated
by Reference to
*10.8 Clearfield, Inc. Code 280G Tax Gross Up Paymenh Rldopted Novemb(Exhibit 10.1 to Registrarg’ Current Report (¢
18, 201C Form &K dated November 18, 201
10.9 Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Appendix A to the Registrat’ Proxy Stateme
for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
on February 25, 201!
23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LL [
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (principakecutive officer) Pursug**
to Rules 13-14(a) and 15-14(a) of the Exchange A
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer (principdinancial officer) Pursuaf*
to Rules 13-14(a) and 15-14(a) of the Exchange A
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Pripal Financial Officg**

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 13

* Indicates a management contract or compensalaryor arrangement.

** Indicates exhibit filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(t)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this repoi
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Clearfield, Inc.

Date: December 4, 2012 By /s/ Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Berane
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpwhe following persons
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.
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Each person whose signature appears below hereisyitodes and appoints Cheryl P. Beranek and Dafeetog and each of them, as his
and lawful attorney-irffact and agent, with full power of substitution,sign on his behalf, individually and in each catastated below, &
amendments to this Form X0-and to file the same, with all exhibits theretodaany other documents in connection therewithh wtiite
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting uasitbatorneys-irfact and agents full power and authority to do padorm each and eve
act and thing requisite and necessary to be doaednabout the premises, as fully and to all istemtd purposes as each might or could
person, hereby ratifying and confirming each aat #aid attorneys-in-fact and agents may lawfuliyod cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Signatures Title Date

/sl Cheryl P. Beranek President, Chief Executive Officer and Directoiifpipal  December 4, 2012
Cheryl P. Beranek executive officer )

/sl Daniel Herzog Chief Financial Officer (principal financial a  December 4, 2012
Daniel Herzog accounting officer)

/s/ Ronald G. Roth Director December 4, 2012

Ronald G. Roth

/s/ John G. Reddan Director December 4, 2012
John G. Reddan

/sl Stephen L. Zuckerman M.D. Director December 4, 2012
Stephen L. Zuckerman

/s/ Donald R. Hayward Director December 4, 2012
Donald R. Hayward

/s/ Charles N. Hayssen Director December 4, 2012
Charles N. Hayssen
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our report dated December 4, 2012 r@spect to the financial statements includethénAnnual Report of Clearfield, Inc. on
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2012.h&/eby consent to the incorporation by refereficaid report in the Registration
Statements of Clearfield, Inc. on Form S-8 (File B83-44500, File No. 333-136828, File No. 333-1%4,5-ile No. 333-166495 and File No.
333-173793)

/s/Grant Thornton LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
December 4, 2012



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Cheryl P. Beranek, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements macde, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cdhner financial information included in this amhueport, fairly represent in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfasmd for, the periods presente(
this annual repor

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsituleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual reasrbeing preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipor, or caused such internal control over finahe@orting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting princij

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control financial reporting that oceed during the registrarst’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registraridurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyadrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s control over financial reportin

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’'s internal controls over financial reportir

December 4, 201

/s/ Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Berane

Chief Executive Office
(Principal executive officel




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Daniel Herzog, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescaptain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements macde, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cdhner financial information included in this amhueport, fairly represent in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfasmd for, the periods presente(
this annual repor

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsituleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual reqasrbeing preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipor, or caused such internal control over finahe@orting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting princij

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contmal$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control financial reporting that oceed during the registrarst’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registraridurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyadrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s control over financial reportin

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’'s internal controls over financial reportir

December 4, 201

/s/ Daniel Herzog

Daniel Herzoc

Chief Financial Office

(Principal financial and accounting office



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.CO1B4&t:

1. The accompanying Annual Report on FormKl®@er the period ended September 30, 2012 fully glies with the requirements
Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchakgeof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mess, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of
Company.

Date: December 4, 201

/s/ Cheryl P. Berane
Cheryl P. Berane
Chief Executive Office

/s/ Daniel Herzog
Daniel Herzoc
Chief Financial Office



